ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 5, 2015

9:01 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 62

"An Act relating to the regulation of marijuana, marijuana
testing, marijuana products, and narijuana accessories; relating
to the licensing of marijuana retailers, producers, processors,
bouti que producers, brokers, and honme growers; relating to
taxation of marijuana; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 24

"An Act relating to the applicability of the Legislative Ethics
Act to legislative interns, legislative volunteers, consultants,
i ndependent contractors, sole proprietorships, and other |egal
entities.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
SENATE BILL NO. 4
"An Act relating to disclosures required by the Legislative
Et hics Act."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Al aska Police Standards Counci
Rebecca Hanpn

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 5, 2015



Qust af Sandahl
- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 62

SHORT TITLE: REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA BUSI NESSES; BOARD
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 25/ 15 (S) STA, L&C, FIN
03/ 05/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Police Standards Counci

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to his
confirmation hearing.

REBECCA HAMON, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Police Standards Counci

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to  her
confirmation hearing.

CHAD HUTCHI SON, St aff

Senat or John Coghi |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained SB 62 on behal f of the sponsor.

DR Tl M H NTERBERGER, Menber

Canpai gn to Regul ate Marijuana Li ke Al cohol
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Recommended changes to SB 62.

BRUCE SCHULTE, Board Memnber

Coal ition for Responsible Canpus Legi sl ation
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Suggest ed changes to SB 62.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 30 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 5, 2015



CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze. He announced the agenda.

Confirmati on Heari ngs

Al aska Police Standards Council
Rebecca Hanpn
CGust af Sandabhl

9:02: 31 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the confirmation hearings for the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

9:03:10 AM

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
provided information related to his confirmation hearing. He
said that he is currently the Chief of Police in Kenai and has
over 19 years of |aw enforcenent experience in Al aska. He stated
that he was honored to be asked to serve a second term on the
Council. It is an inportant role to help ensure appropriate
standards for | aw enforcenent.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for an explanation of his duties.

9:04:48 AM

MR. SANDAHL expl ained his experience in |law enforcenent and his
role on the Council looking into police officer msconduct and
determ ning whether certifications should be revoked. He said
the Council neets twice a year and also |ooks at regulation
changes.

9:06: 45 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked about the Board.

MR. SANDAHL replied that the Board is made up of 13 nenbers;
four nmunicipal police chiefs, the Comm ssioner of Public Safety
or designee, Conm ssioner of the Departnent of Corrections,
several public nmenbers, and the director, training coordinator,
and adm nistrative assistant of the Council.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for an explanation of the funding.

MR. SANDAHL said funding comes from surcharges on tickets and
m sdeneanor and fel ony of fenses.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 5, 2015



9:08: 15 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE i nquired about cross-1licensing bet ween
depart nents.

MR SANDAHL said that issue is under the director of the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted M. Sandahl's previous board experience
and asked what inportant issues occurred in 2014.

MR. SANDAHL specified that there were several cases of
m sconduct and proposed changes to regul ati ons.

9:11: 21 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked M. Sandabhl .

9:13:36 AM

REBECCA HAMON, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
provided information related to her confirmation hearing. She
said that she is the village advocate and |egal advocate for
Safe and Fear-Free Environment in Dillingham which offers
advocacy to victins of donestic violence and sexual assault. She
said she is very involved in those issues. She concluded that
serving on the Council has been very interesting and
enl i ghtening regardi ng | aw enforcenent issues.

9:15: 43 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked about victins' rights as provided for in the
state constitution.

M5. HAMON said there is a lot of attention on victins' rights
i ssues, but it varies from departnment to department. There is an
attenpt to devel op a team approach

9:17: 37 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE could tell M. Hanon understood Article 1, Section
24.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted Ms. Hanbn has been on the Council since
2011.

M5. HAMON agr eed.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked about her contributions to the Council

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 5, 2015



M5. HAMON stated that the first year was spend |earning about
the Council and police standards. She said she devoted a |ot of
attention to cases that involve victins.

9: 20: 14 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the district court caseloads and
i nteracti ons.

M5. HAMON described typical caseloads and spoke of trials and
spoke of the support she provides to the assistant district
attorney.

SENATOR HUGAE NS t hanked Ms. Hanon

CHAIR STOLTZE voiced appreciation for those who work for
victins' rights. He thanked Ms. Hanon.

9:23:35 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the names of the nom nees will be
forwarded to the joint session "with the standard |anguage on
t he appoi ntnment forns."

9:24: 01 AM
At ease.

SB 62- REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA BUSI NESSES; BOARD

9:24: 21 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 62.

9:24:33 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL explained that SB 62 is a product of the Senate
Judiciary Committee. The issues presented by Ballot Measure 2
are how to deal with the penalties of m suse and how to regul ate
the marijuana industry, which is what SB 62 addresses. He noted
that the federal government considers marijuana a schedule 1
drug - a controlled substance.

9:26: 38 AM

CHAD HUTCHI SON, Staff, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi slature, explained SB 62 on behalf of the sponsor. He said
SB 62 deals with the comrercial marijuana industry and has two
maj or focuses, to protect young people and to elimnate the
bl ack mar ket .

9:28:25 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 5, 2015



MR. HUTCHI SON began by expl aining that Ballot Measure 2 provides
that the marijuana industry is now a legitimte taxpaying
busi ness and marijuana nust be |abelled to ensure that consuners
are informed and protected. He listed the provisions available
to persons 21 years of age or older and the restrictions on
marijuana use in public places.

9:29:49 AM
MR HUTCHI SON addressed nmarijuana-related facilities and
establishments, which all nust have current, valid registration.

9:31: 01 AM

MR. HUTCH SON di scussed rul enmaking deadlines as they apply to
marijuana. For exanple, the board has nine nonths to inplenent
regul ations related to chapter 38, the marijuana provision, such
as civil penal ti es, | abelling requirenents, and security
requi renents. The board has one year from February 24, 2015 to
begin accepting and processing applications for registration.
Also, 45 to 90 days after receiving an application the board
must issue annual registration or notification of denial.

MR, HUTCHI SON reviewed |ocal participation and control options.
For exanmple, local governnents nay prohibit establishnents,
enact ordinances, and establish operating fees and civi
penalties. They may al so create |local regulatory authority.

9:33: 35 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Hutchison to explain the paraneters of
| ocal control

MR. HUTCH SON explained that the bill provides |ocal control
authority much |ike the alcohol provisions that currently exist
regarding wet and dry comunities. About one-third of Colorado's
counties have decided not to have marijuana establishnents.

CHAIR STOLTZE sumrarized that it would be legal to possess and
use, but the |ocal government could control whether or not it
coul d be manuf act ur ed.

MR. HUTCHI SON answer ed yes.

MR, HUTCHI SON reviewed that the Ravin Decision is unaffected by
SB 62, as are the nmarijuana DU and nedical use |aws. Enpl oyers
may still restrict use in the workplace and private property
owner s/ occupiers and public facilities may prohibit or regul ate
marijuana on their property.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 5, 2015



9: 35:38 AM

MR. HUTCH SON addressed how taxes are assessed on nmarijuana
busi nesses. The Departnent of Revenue will excise a tax of $50
per ounce when sold or transferred from a cultivation facility
to a retail store and records nust be kept of the transactions.
These provisions will help to dimnish the black market.

9: 36: 43 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE said it would be safer for all people.

MR. HUTCHI SON agr eed.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if local governnents are limted from al so
chargi ng t axes.

MR. HUTCH SON replied that they can charge nunicipal taxes at
the retail |evel.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if there were any Title 29 restrictions that
appl i ed.

MR. HUTCHI SON said he is not aware of any.

CHAI R STOLTZE he conpared it to the al cohol industry, which has
some Title 29 restrictions.

MR. HUTCHI SON offered to get back to the commttee on that.

9:38:13 AM

MR.  HUTCHI SON turned to the state's involvenent wth the
initiative. The legislature has broad power to anend the
initiative and various related |laws. Departnents can pronul gate
regul ati ons.

MR. HUTCHI SON |isted the nunber of bills Ballot Measure 2 has
spawned. He noted there is also a conpanion bill to SB 62.

9:39: 28 AM

MR. HUTCHI SON began a sectional analysis of SB 62. Section 1
deals with the inspection and certification of marijuana testing
facilities, whi ch is done t hr ough t he Depart ment of
Envi ronmental Conservation. The intent is to have sanples of
marijuana sent to the facility for testing.

He explained that Section 2 deals with marijuana accessories.
Section 3 deals with limtations on advertising. It will ensure

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 5, 2015



that there is no advertising to mnors. Section 4 says the board
is required to adopt regul ations for commercial |icenses.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Hutchison to describe the board's
requirenments.

MR. HUTCHI SON clarified that he is referring to the Marijuana
Control Board, if it is approved, or the Alcohol Beverage
Control (ABC) Board, which is the current board with presunptive
authority.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the ABC Board is the default board as
named by the initiative sponsors.

MR. HUTCHI SON sai d yes.

9:41: 05 AM
MR.  HUTCHI SON continued wth Section 5 which deals wth
regul ati ons for packaging and |abeling of marijuana for persons

that have a marijuana retailer license. It <contains child
protection el enents. Section 6 discusses applications or
renewal s. Section 7 is the fee paynent provision. Section 8
provi des that the board has 90 days to issue an annual |icense.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked whether the 90 days is to issue a license or
to make a determ nation on the i ssuance of a |license.

MR. HUTCH SON answered that it is to issue the license. If a
license is not issued, the applicant has the ability to go to a
| ocal regulatory authority.

9:42: 48 AM
MR, HUTCHI SON related that Section 9 says the board shal
consider local municipality nunerical limts. It is a |ocal

control option.
CHAI R STOLTZE asked if it is simlar to alcohol regulations.

MR, HUTCHISON said it is wequivalent to the process for
determ ning the nunber of liquor |icenses.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if a nunicipality can set up limts based on
popul ati on numnbers.

MR. HUTCHI SON suggested asking Ms. Franklin fromthe ABC Board.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 5, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE t hought the target was simlar to |local control of
al cohol 1i censi ng.

MR. HUTCH SON answer ed correct.

9:44: 23 AM
MR. HUTCH SON said that Section 10 provides that nmarijuana
establi shnments shall disclose where they will operate. Section

11 says a municipality may prohibit a marijuana establishnment
t hrough enactnent of an ordinance or voter initiative. Section
12 says a nunicipality may enact ordinances that govern the
time, place, mnner, and nunber of nmarijuana establishnment
oper at i ons.

MR. HUTCHI SON continued to explain that in Section 13 a
muni ci pality may process applications wthin the boundaries of
the municipality if the board fails to adopt regul ations.
Section 14 allows a nunicipality the ability to i ssue, suspend,
or revoke a license. Section 15 allows a nunicipality to
establish a schedule for annual |icensing, renewal, and
application fees to marijuana establishnments. Section 16 says an
applicant may resubmt their application for license to a | ocal
regul atory authority if the board does not issue a |icense after
May 24, 2016, and does not provide reason/notice of denial.

9:46: 39 AM

MR, HUTCHI SON said Section 17 says if the board does not adopt
regul ations on tinme, the local regulatory authority may issue an
annual |icense. Section 18 says a local regulatory authority
shall issue a license within 90 days after they receive an
application. Section 19 says a license issued by a municipality
shal |l have the sanme force and effect as the license issued by
the board. Section 20 provides that AS 17.38.110(j) is anmended
to read that a renewed |icense, issued by a nunicipality, may be
i ssued on an annual basis upon resubm ssion to the nunicipality.

MR, HUTCHI SON turned to Section 21 which states that a renewed
license may be issued by a local regulatory authority. He said
Section 22 is the area people are nost interested in because it
deals with types of licenses: (1) producer license; (2)
processor license; (3) retailer license; (4) boutique producer
license; (5) broker license; and (6) hone-grower |icense,

testing, notice provisions, |icense procedures.
9:49: 16 AM
MR. HUTCHI SON reviewed basic licenses and vertical |icenses,

such as producer/processor/retailer licenses. There is interest

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 5, 2015



in having a license where one entity provides all three
services, hence the vertical |icense.

MR.  HUTCHI SON showed a slide that I|isted all the alcohol
industry licenses and predicted there would be a simlar nunber
in the marijuana industry.

MR. HUTCH SON went into detail about the marijuana producer
license whose facilities are the only prem ses where nore than
50 plants can be grown. They can sell to retailer or processors
and they have the state tax obligation of $50 per ounce sol d.

9:51: 37 AM

MR, HUTCHI SON descri bed the marijuana processor |icense for the
facility that produces marijuana infused products. It does not
have a tax burden.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked what tinctures are.
MR. HUTCHI SON expl ained that a tincture is an infused sol ution.

9:53:48 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked if the state has a claw back provision if
it is losing noney on the marketing of marijuana.

MR. HUTCHI SON explained that the tax is built into the marijuana
pr oduced.

SENATOR HUGE NS restated his question and said he does not want
the state to subsidize the industry.

9:55:50 AM
MR. HUTCHI SON replied that they have had those conversations and
sone believe that wll happen at first. The hope 1is that

regul ati ons provide positive results.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted Conmm ssioner Hoffbeck would address that
concern.

MR. HUTCHI SON expl ai ned the marijuana retailer license, which is
for a facility from which any individual 21 or older my
purchase marijuana. This |icensee does not have a state tax
burden, but could be responsible for additional municipal taxes.

9:58:10 AM
MR. HUTCHI SON related information about the marijuana boutique
producer |icense. This licensee is permtted to grow not nore

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 5, 2015



than 50 plants at one tine and may sell only to a licensed
marijuana broker. The tax burden is absorbed by the broker. The
license is to encourage | egal grows.

CHAIR STOLTZE requested further information on the cost of
i censes for conparable industries.

MR. HUTCHI SON expl ained that the board wll determ ne what the
licensing fees will be.

SENATOR HUGE NS said it rem nds himof |egalizing noonshine.

MR. HUTCHI SON brought up the problem of trying to elimnate the
bl ack mar ket .

CHAIR STOLTZE said there has been a lot of discussion about
cottage industries and the possibility of large business
i nvol venent .

10: 02: 26 AM

MR. HUTCHI SON expl ai ned provisions related to the home grower in
an attenpt to elimnate the black market. He noted a unique
provi sion that provides that an individual will obtain a unique
| D nunber that verifies the grower's age and Al aska residency.
It is simlar to provisions in Col orado.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the state has the technology to do the
t racki ng.

MR. HUTCHI SON shared Col orado's procedures using radio frequency
| D tags and a conputer verification system

He noted that the tax burden for the hone grower license is also
absorbed by the broker.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if it would be a public process or a
confidential one.

10: 05: 16 AM
MR HUTCHISON said the presunption is that the data is
confidential .

CHAI R STOLTZE wi shed to have an open discussion about it at some
poi nt .

10: 06: 00 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 5, 2015



MR.  HUTCHI NSON discussed the marijuana broker |I|icense, which
applies to those authorized to purchase any anount of narijuana
and marijuana products from |icensed processor, bouti que
producer or hone grower and to sell any anount to |icensed
processor or retailer. It is responsible for the state tax the
sane as a producer is.

SENATOR COGHI LL commented that this is where testing becones
i nportant.

MR. HUTCHI SON agreed. He described the producer/processor/retai
license, which allows the retailer to exclusively sell their own
product. They are liable for the state and nunicipal tax
bur dens.

CHAIR STOLTZE said that differs from the regulation of alcohol
whi ch prohibits this type of integration.

MR. HUTCHI SON agr eed.

10: 08: 13 AM

MR, HUTCH SON briefly nentioned the producer/processor |icense
which is sonewhat the sane as the previously nentioned |icense.
He shared the definitions from Sections 23 - 27,

He said Section 28 states that nmarijuana can be regulated by
nmuni ci palities; Section 29 discusses the state tax of $50;
Section 30 deals with record keepi ng by producers and brokers.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the netric system would be used in the
i ndustry for weights.

MR, HUTCHI SON said he is open to suggestions.

CHAIR STOLTZE conpared it to neasurenents of alcohol, such as
liters.

10: 10: 30 AM

MR, HUTCH NSON said Section 31 deals with penalties for tax
deficiencies; Section 32 cleans up definitions; Section 33 lists
the statutes that are repealed; Section 34 states that the Act
takes effect imedi ately.

10: 12: 08 AM

DR, TIM H NTERBERGER, Menber, Canpaign to Regulate Marijuana
Li ke Al cohol, addressed recomended changes to SB 62. He voiced
appreciation for the work on the bill and the incorporation of

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 5, 2015



some of the group's ideas. He spoke in support of the inclusion
of registration for hone growers, boutique producers, and
br okers.

He pointed out that he has detailed several concerns in a letter
to the commttee. The nost serious concern is the deletion of AS
17.38.070, which contained conprehensive |egal protections for
busi nesses and their enployees. There is also concern with the
provision limting the amount that can be sold per day, per
person. It would require extensive, intrusive record-keeping and
would be illegal wunder the initiative because individua

purchase records cannot be naintained by businesses. There is
al so concern that the licensing fees would increase the tota

anount of the maxi mum application fee to beyond $5,000. There is
al so concern about revoking or suspending registration because
it is excessively burdensonme on busi nesses.

He pointed out that it is clear the sponsor is aware of the goa
of the initiative is to elimnate the black market industry.

Burdensone regulations will nmake it nore difficult to neet that
goal .

10: 15: 30 AM

DR. HI NTERBERGER proposed several changes to the current version
of SB 62. He said the current version of the bill deletes the
guote "notw thstanding" in the paraphernalia provisions, which
is an inportant protection for wusers. It also uses broad

| anguage in Section 3 regarding banning advertising and
packaging that may be enticing to mnors. He said he supports
reasonable restrictions on advertising and efforts to prevent
advertising fromtargeting m nors.

He also noted that the current version of the bill changes
"registration' to "license" throughout. The word registration
was carefully chosen in light of court decisions on federal

preenption. It also increases the total application fees beyond
the $5,000 cap stated in the initiative and it requires rather
than allows, a nunicipality to establish local licensing fees

That shoul d be optional.

He continued to say that the bill limts the amount that retails
the amount retailers can sell per day to adults, illegally
requiring intrusive record-keeping. To protect personal privacy,
Measure 2 prohibits regulations from requiring retailers to
coll ect and record personal information about their consuners.

10: 18: 20 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 5, 2015



DR.  HI NTERBERGER continued to specify changes, noting the
requi renent of retailers to be closed from mdnight to 8:00 a. m
He pointed out that bars do not have those restrictions. Hours
of operation are best left to the regulatory board or
localities. SB 62 forbids retailers from selling to other
licensees. They should not be prohibited from selling excess
inventory to other retailers. The bill says that a marijuana
processor cannot sell to a broker, but a broker may buy
marijuana froma processor, which seens |ike a contradiction

He addressed community notices in the bill, which he deened
excessive, especially for hone growers. It says each application
and transfer would have to be posted at the proposed |ocation,
which is unnecessary and would put small-scale growers at risk
for theft. Also, it would allow a black narket grower to protest
the application of a regulated business. Simlarly, SB 62 says
the board nay require three weeks of paid notices in newspapers
for applicants and would be extrenely costly. It says the board
"shall suspend or revoke" a license if it finds the continued

sale or mnufacture of marijuana by the licensee would be
contrary to "the best interests of the public.” He terned that
vague and overly broad |anguage. He nmmintained that |icensees

need notice of the rules and what is not permtted and should
not be subject to personal judgenent of the board.

10: 20: 59 AM
DR, H NTERBERGER continued to specify changes. He said SB 62
says the board "shall suspend or revoke a licensee"” if it finds

that the licensee has failed to correct a defect that is in
violation of "other applicable law." Gven that nmarijuana
cultivation and sales violate federal law, this should be

revised to clearly apply only to state law. He noted that in
several places SB 62 says that a suspension or revocation of a
regulation "is required" by the board. It should say a
revocation "should be allowed.” He stressed that the board
shoul d have discretion to inpose a reasonable penalty rather
than be forced to suspend or revoke a |license.

He mai ntained that SB 62 grants the board overly broad authority
to "inpose conditions or restrictions on a license.”" SB 62 says
that only a licensee may have a direct or indirect financial
interest in a license, which would create unnecessary obstacles
to raising capital. SB 62 repeals conprehensive |egal
protections for marijuana establishnents and their staff and
replacing them with |anguage that is problematic. He said that
the bill was crafted to nake marijuana establishnents and their
staff's conduct |awful and exenpt from crimnal penalties under

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 5, 2015



state law. This proposal would delete such conprehensive |ega
protections and replace them wth sections "authorizing
conduct.” This would mke the law nore susceptible to a
preenption chal | enge.

He offered to answer questions.
10: 23: 11 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that SB 24 and SB 4 would not be heard
t oday.

10: 25: 35 AM
BRUCE SCHULTE, Board Menber, Coalition for Responsible Canpus
Legislation, testified on SB 62. He voiced appreciation for the

efforts of commttee nenbers and staff on the bill. He noted he
has submtted witten comments. He first discussed an item he
supports, such as the addition of nore |I|icense categories,

especially the integrated |icenses. He said he can envision the
need for nore licenses in the future and suggested defining a
broader framework for the |icenses.

10: 28: 00 AM
VR. SCHULTE opined that confidentiality is an inportant
consi deration regardi ng record-keepi ng and reporting.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked to what degree he was consi dering privacy.

MR. SCHULTE specified that he was thinking of the requirenents
for reporting and record-keeping, not |icensing.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted communi ty concerns about reporting.
MR. SCHULTE suggested there could be a bal ance.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the state or local comunities should
determ ne privacy conditions.

MR, SCHULTE said he thought it should be wup to loca
communi ties.

10: 30: 23 AM

MR, SCHULTE turned to the topic of revenue sharing. He provided
a suggestion to retain the provision in the initiative that 50
percent of the application fee be given to the nunicipalities.
He thought that renoving that provision would increase the total
cost of licensing application fees above $5, 000.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- March 5, 2015



MR. SCHULTE addressed the stipulation that a nunicipality shal
establish both a regulatory board and regul ati ons. He suggested
that be optional and hoped the state regulations would be
adequat e.

He echoed Dr. Hinterberger's opposition to limting the one
ounce limt at the retail |evel

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if he had an opinion about the use of the
metric systemfor neasurenents.

10: 33: 40 AM
MR. SCHULTE replied that historically marijuana has been sold in
ounces and grans.

CHAIR STOLTZE countered that doses of THC are neasured in
mlligramns.

MR. SCHULTE said that is correct for purposes of measuring for
potency and for Ilabeling; for marketing and commerce purposes
it is typically ounces and grans.

CHAI R STOLTZE said his concern is for regulation, taxing, etc.
He said Colorado has the ounce-per-day limt for retailers. He
wondered if M. Schulte disagreed with that.

10: 35: 06 AM

MR, SCHULTE answered that Col orado has a good nodel, however, it
is problematic to actually put that provision in place. |In order
to guarantee that one individual is not buying nore than one
ounce per day, onerous, intrusive record-keeping would be
needed.

CHAIR STOLTZE contrasted that wth alcohol requirenents. He
asked if marijuana has any parallels to those.

MR. SCHULTE said not that he is aware of.

CHAIR STOLTZE said he was defaulting to "regulate it |Ilike
al cohol . "

MR, SCHULTE said he does not dispute that. He noted that
inebriates are recognizable, whereas stoned persons do not
present the sanme dynam c

10: 37: 06 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE sunmmari zed his concern

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 5, 2015



MR. SCHULTE agreed it was a valid concern.

He continued with a concern about the board's ability to deny a
| icense under many  circunstances. He agreed that sone
circunstances would nerit denial, however, the wording "shall"
limts the board from applying other sanctions. He also
mai ntai ned that the wording "not in the best interests of the
public" is too vague.

CHAI R STOLTZE agreed it is subjective.

MR. SCHULTE hoped that the statutes would define an overall
regul atory environnment and |eave sone of the detail to the
regul at ory board.

10: 39: 49 AM

MR. SCHULTE addressed a concern regarding prohibitive financia
interest. He said Al aska-based businesses support the intent of
keeping the business in Alaska, but there are situations where
out-of-state investors will be involved. He provided an exanple
of the expense of a testing lab and the potential need for
outside investors. He said he does not have a specific
recommendati on for changing this provision.

MR. SCHULTE noted a concern during the canmpaign to keep "big
marijuana” out of the Alaska industry. He said he supports that
but al so recognizes the need for adequate financing. He pointed
out that interstate comrerce regulations may inpact this section
of the bill.

10: 42: 32 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL opined that financing is an issue, as 1is
interstate commerce and transportation, when planning a
regul atory schene.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there should be an econonmc value
attached to |icenses and whether they should be transferrable.

10: 43: 36 AM
MR. SCHULTE answered that marijuana |icensing should not be Iike
al cohol licensing, due to potential expense.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the initiative has an intent to limt or
prohibit |icenses from being owed outside Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 5, 2015



MR. SCHULTE could not recall seeing that specific provision in
the initiative. He said he is speaking from an industry
per specti ve.

CHAIR STOLTZE thought the intent was to have Al aska-based
busi nesses.

10: 45: 16 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOMBKI stated that it should be for Al aska
busi nesses and Al aska resi dents.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if pilots and others should be prohibited
from buyi ng marijuana.

MR. SCHULTE answered that he is a comercial pilot and
recognizes the limts in respect to marijuana use required by
his enployment. He nmaintained it is up to the individual, not
the retailer. It is a personal choi ce.

Responding to a previous question, M. Schulte defined tincture
as a diluted form of hash oil. He said it is often found in
medi cal applications. He referred to a special on CNN on the
topi c of tinctures.

10: 48: 07 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked M. Schulte to provide commentary at a l|ater
date on insurance, as it relates to the marijuana industry.

CHAI R STOLTZE held SB 62 in commttee.

10: 49: 22 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:49 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 5, 2015



